
 
BOXBOROUGH PLANNING BOARD 

29 Middle Road, Boxborough, Massachusetts 01719 
Phone: (978) 264-1723 · Fax: (978) 264-3127 

www.boxborough-ma.gov 

Owen Neville, Chair Eduardo Pontoriero, Clerk Nancy Fillmore  John Markiewicz Hongbing Tang 
 

Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 

7:30 PM 
Grange Meeting Room, Town Hall, 29 Middle Road 

 
Members Present: 
 
Owen Neville, Chair 
Eduardo Pontoriero, Clerk 
Nancy Fillmore, Member 
John Markiewicz, Member 
Hongbing Tang, Member 
Adam Duchesneau, Town Planner 
 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 7:35 PM. 
 
Correspondence 
Mr. Duchesneau pointed out a draft Decision for the 223 Flagg Hill Road Stone Wall Removal 
or Alteration application had been included in the Planning Board’s materials. Mr. Duchesneau 
summarized the Decision and went over each of the conditions.  
 
Ms. Fillmore MADE a MOTION to approve the 223 Flagg Hill Road Stone Wall Removal or 
Alteration Decision as amended and to authorize the Planning Board Chair, the Planning Board 
Clerk, or the Town Planner to sign the Decision on behalf of the Planning Board. Mr. 
Markiewicz SECONDED the MOTION. All members voted in favor. 
 
Mr. Duchesneau then called out the memorandums which were submitted by the Town’s 
Consulting Engineer, Places Associates, Inc., for the property located at 593 Massachusetts 
Avenue. The memorandums, a Site Plan Review, Stormwater Review, and Notice of Intent 
Review, were all dated May 2, 2016. An email from Board of Health Agent Jim Garreffi dated 
May 2, 2016 had also been submitted to the Planning Board with comments regarding the 
property at 593 Massachusetts Avenue. There was then discussion regarding the Notice of Intent 
document to sell the property at 94 Chester Road, a piece of Chapter Land, from the property 
owners, Patrick and Harriet Moran. Mr. Duchesneau explained that because the land is currently 
in Chapter, the Town could match the purchase and sale offer and buy the property for $150,000. 
The Board of Selectmen will be holding a discussion regarding this matter at a future meeting 
and they will be looking for a recommendation from the Planning Board as to whether or not 
they should exercise their right of first refusal on the property. The Planning Board determined 
they would discuss the matter further at one of their future meetings prior to the Board of 
Selectmen taking up the matter.  
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 2 of 6 
 
700 & 800 Massachusetts Avenue (aka Town Center) – Site Plan Approval Application – 
Stamski and McNary, Inc. on behalf of property owner Boxborough Town Center, LLC, 
for a proposed senior housing development with 100 dwelling units in 50 structures, a 
clubhouse, mixed-use buildings, and associated wells, wastewater treatment facilities, and 
roadways 
At 7:45 PM the Planning Board took up this agenda item. William Hall, from Stamski & 
McNary, Inc., was present to request a continuation of the preliminary public hearing to the 
Planning Board’s meeting on Monday, May 23, 2016.  
 
Mr. Neville MADE a MOTION to continue the preliminary public hearing for the 700 & 800 
Massachusetts Avenue Site Plan Approval application to the Planning Board’s meeting on 
Monday, May 23, 2016 at 8:15 PM. Ms. Fillmore SECONDED the MOTION. All members 
voted in favor.  
 
Correspondence (continued) 
The Planning Board then continued their conversation regarding the Notice of Intent to sell the 
property at 94 Chester Road. Mr. Pontoriero noted the Town does not have significant funds 
lying around to purchase the land and the Special Permit which the Zoning Board of Appeals 
awarded for this property requires the Applicant to donate 12 acres of the parcel to the 
Conservation Commission. Mr. Pontoriero wondered if the Planning Board should simply 
recommend to the Board of Selectmen they relinquish their right of first refusal. Mr. Markiewicz 
noted only one house could be constructed on the lot and if the Town spent $150,000 to buy the 
property, it would only be preventing one dwelling from being constructed. Mr. Neville noted 
this will likely be a house no one will ever see from any roadway. There was then discussion 
regarding the location of the 94 Chester Road parcel and where its frontage was located. The 
parcel actually has no frontage but gets its access through another property with 50 feet of 
frontage on Meadow Lane.  
 
Boxborough2030 Meeting Date and Implementation Topics 
Mr. Duchesneau indicated the Planning Board needed to schedule their first Joint Public Meeting 
with the Board of Selectmen to begin discussing the implementation of Boxborough2030. Mr. 
Duchesneau proposed the following dates for a potential Joint Public Meeting: May 23, 2016, 
June 6, 2016, or June 20, 2016. Due to the extremely full nature of the Planning Board’s May 
23rd meeting, the Board indicated their first preference for the Joint Public Meeting was June 6th 
and then June 20th. Mr. Duchesneau stated he would take that information back to the Town 
Administrator and arrange a Joint Public Meeting date. 
 
593 Massachusetts Avenue – Site Plan Approval Application – Boxboro Properties, LLC to 
construct a two-story building consisting of approximately 8,712 square feet of trade shop space 
with parking, sewage disposal, drainage, and associated landscaping and grading for landscape 
contractor, trade shop, and other uses 
At 8:00 PM the Chair read the legal notice into the record and opened the public hearing for the 
application. William Hall, from Stamski & McNary, Inc., and property owner Leo Bertolami 
were present to discuss the application with the Planning Board. Mr. Hall provided an overview 
of the existing conditions at the property and the proposed new structure and parking area. He 
also provided a contextual overview of the surrounding area. Mr. Hall indicated they are 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 3 of 6 
 
proposing 10 foot wide by 20 foot deep parking spaces on the exterior of the building, but were 
examining the use of reduced size parking spaces for the interior of the structure.  
 
Mr. Markiewicz asked if there were any issues related to moving the well from the front of the 
lot to the back of the property, or if there were any water quality concerns. Mr. Hall stated that 
no water quality testing had been conducted yet. Ms. Fillmore asked what was planned for the 
Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program (NHESP) area at the property. Mr. Hall 
indicated they would only be removing a catch basin in that particular area. Ms. Tang asked if it 
would be possible to move the entire building completely out of the 100 foot wetland buffer area. 
Mr. Hall indicated this is extremely difficult due to the location of the septic system and the front 
landscaping. Mr. Duchesneau added the Business Zoning District has a 50 foot front yard 
setback and the building is right up against this limit. Mr. Neville asked if seeking a Variance 
from this requirement would be beneficial to the project. Mr. Hall indicated this would not be 
likely because the septic system in the front yard is virtually as narrow as it can be made.  
 
Mr. Neville noted the plans for the proposal indicate there will be more parking inside than 
outside of the building. Mr. Hall stated they are looking at parking vehicles inside the building, 
but will be reworking their proposal. He also asked the Planning Board if they would consider 
allowing reduced sized parking spaces inside the proposed structure. Mr. Bertolami indicated 
many of the potential users of the building, electricians, plumbers, carpenters, landscapers, etc., 
would park vehicles inside the building. He also noted each garage bay would be big enough to 
be a quality space, but a substantial company would be too large to occupy one of these spaces. 
Mr. Markiewicz asked if Mr. Bertolami had compiled this type of rental space set up in other 
locations. Mr. Bertolami indicated he had done something similar at Wetherbee Plaza in Acton, 
Massachusetts. He pointed out the proposed structure would be just big enough to capture small 
sized contractors.  
 
Mr. Pontoriero inquired if the façade of the proposed structure could be made to better integrate 
with the other structures in the area. Mr. Bertolami stated they had explored a design which had 
four rental space units above storage space, but the currently proposed design seemed to make 
better use of the interior space. Mr. Pontoriero pointed out the new veterinary dental clinic and 
the Police Station buildings fit well into the community, and it would be preferable if this 
building did the same. Mr. Bertolami noted the façade of the proposed structure was broken up to 
better identify the four separate spaces within the building. Mr. Pontoriero commented it would 
be a good idea to have someone take another look at the design of the proposed front façade. Mr. 
Markiewicz requested the front façade be more aesthetically pleasing.  
 
Ms. Tang asked about the potential traffic impacts the proposed Site Plan might create and 
questioned whether the proposed driveway openings would allow for one-way or two-way 
traffic. Mr. Hall indicated both driveways are currently proposed to accommodate for two-way 
traffic. Ms. Tang suggested it might be better to have the driveways allow for only one-way 
traffic. Ms. Fillmore noted the proposed business types for the property (tradesman, landscaping, 
etc.) would seem to necessitate at least 10 foot wide by 20 foot deep parking spaces. There was 
then discussion regarding the size and location of parking spaces at the property.  
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 4 of 6 
 
Mr. Markiewicz suggested perhaps using faux members to mimic bays on the outside of the front 
façade. Mr. Duchesneau then highlighted various points from the Staff Report about the 
proposal. Mr. Hall described the proposed drainage plan in greater detail. Mr. Neville 
recommended the Applicant insert some parking spaces near the front of the building to make it 
easier for clients to access the office spaces at the front. Mr. Duchesneau discussed the 
possibility of implementing parallel parking spaces along one side of the building and Mr. Hall 
stated they could look into that further. Ms. Tang indicated she would prefer to see more green 
space at the property.  
 
Cathy Sisco of 95 Cobleigh Road asked how much light will be emitted from the rear of the 
proposed building.  
 
Kathi Breuer of 115 Cobleigh Road stated the lighting at the rear of the project and noise were 
her biggest concerns. She also indicated they can see the lights at the rear of the buildings along 
Massachusetts Avenue/Route 111.  
 
Mr. Neville asked if the Applicant was proposing any evergreen plantings to help screen the 
lighting from the project. Mr. Pontoriero noted selecting properly shielded lighting will be a key 
component for this proposal. Ms. Breuer asked if the lighting could be motion sensor activated. 
Mr. Bertolami indicated he would prefer to have hard lighting at the rear of the property for 
security purposes in the parking area and to protect products which might be stored within the 
building.  
 
Mr. Neville MADE a MOTION to continue the public hearing to the Planning Board’s meeting 
on Monday, May 23, 2016 at 8:45 PM. Mr. Pontoriero SECONDED the MOTION. All members 
voted in favor.  
 
205 and 223 Flagg Hill Road – Definitive Subdivision Plan and Private/Common Driveway 
Special Permit Application – Applicant Meridian Homes, Inc. seeks to subdivide two 
existing lots into eleven buildable lots and one open space parcel off a proposed new cul-de-
sac road named Silas Taylor Farme Road off Flagg Hill Road. The application also 
includes a request to create a Private/Common Driveway at the end of the cul-de-sac to 
serve two of the proposed new lots 
The Chair opened the continuation of the public hearing for the application at 9:05 PM. Bruce 
Ringwall from Goldsmith, Prest & Ringwall, Inc. (GPR, Inc.) and the developer, Glen 
Kaufmann, were in attendance to discuss the proposed project. Mr. Ringwall presented a number 
of changes to the plan set since the application was last discussed with the Planning Board. He 
noted the drainage easement on Lot 5 had been adjusted, as well as the listed lot area. 
Additionally, the requested waiver list had been updated to reflect the additional waivers which 
were now being requested. Mr. Ringwall pointed out the wet basin near the intersection of Flagg 
Hill Road and the proposed subdivision roadway had been changed to an infiltration basin. He 
also indicated four catch basins near the lower part of the roadway which had been designed with 
silt basins were changed and one discharge point was eliminated.  
 
Mr. Ringwall noted any electrical lines which might run through an easement area could be 
conditioned to be redesigned around the easement areas prior to endorsement of the plan. The 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 5 of 6 
 
sidewalk had also been adjusted to allow for a four foot grass strip between it and the roadway, 
and the Private/Common Driveway sub base was revised to meet the 15 inches of depth 
requirement. Mr. Ringwall also indicated the street trees had been pulled back seven feet outside 
of the proposed right-of-way and they decided to stay with a grassed slope on the western 
embankment of the proposed roadway near Flagg Hill Road. He then went over the slope, pitch, 
and drainage of the Private/Common Driveway indicating much of the stormwater runoff would 
be channeled into an adjacent grass swale with check dams. Mr. Kaufmann noted the headlights 
from vehicles turning into the proposed subdivision roadway can only be seen by the residents of 
33 Woodward Lane when they are looking out their window and downward towards the 
roadway.   
 
Mr. Duchesneau read the email from Places Associates, Inc. from earlier that day cautioning 
against closing the public hearing prior to the completion of their review of the updated plan set. 
Ms. Tang did not feel the Planning Board should grant the Applicant a wavier from the 
requirement which called for the Landscape Plan to be stamped by a registered Landscape 
Architect. She felt the project and topography of the site were very complex, and a Landscape 
Architect would help to minimize the adverse impact the project might create. Additionally, she 
felt a Landscape Architect would ensure adequate planting buffers and quality aesthetics for the 
project. Ms. Tang felt having a registered Landscape Architect involved would be a great benefit 
to the project.   
 
Mr. Ringwall noted the Rules & Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land call for a 
Landscape Architect for the streetscape components. The wetland areas for the project call for a 
botanist and wetlands agent. In terms of drainage, Mr. Ringwall believed Landscape Architects 
have good ideas, but he also felt the project had already incorporated a number of appropriate 
measures for proper drainage. Ms. Tang stated she felt the landscape changes along the roadway 
were significant and a registered Landscape Architect would be beneficial to the project. Mr. 
Markiewicz asked how difficult it would be to get a Landscape Architect to stamp the Landscape 
Plan. Mr. Ringwall indicated he was uncertain as the Landscape Architects he had used in the 
past are no longer working as independent contractors. Ms. Tang felt some of the seeded areas 
should be naturalized and the seeding mixtures should be more clearly identified in the plan set. 
 
The Planning Board then went through the remainder of the requested waivers for the proposed 
project. Upon completion of this discussion, the Planning Board revisited the registered 
Landscape Architect wavier request. Mr. Pontoriero stated he had concerns that another Board 
member, who is a registered Landscape Architect, also had concerns about the project. Mr. 
Neville indicated he was comfortable with the proposed waiver because many of the concerns 
about the plantings will be handled by the Conservation Commission. Ms. Tang noted there is no 
planting detail within the plan set, but she mainly wanted to ensure the overall project is 
designed and developed appropriately. 
 
Ms. Tang MADE a MOTION to deny the Applicant’s request for a waiver from the requirement 
that the Landscape Plan be stamped by a registered Landscape Architect. Ms. Fillmore 
SECONDED the MOTION. Ms. Tang, Mr. Markiewicz, and Mr. Pontoriero voted in favor. Mr. 
Neville and Ms. Fillmore voted against. The motion passed and the waiver was not granted. 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
May 2, 2016 
Page 6 of 6 
 
Mr. Neville then MADE a MOTION to continue the public hearing to Monday, May 9, 2016 at 
6:30 PM in a room in the Blanchard Memorial School. Ms. Fillmore SECONDED the MOTION. 
All members voted in favor. 
 
Discussion Regarding Warrant Article Presentations for the May 2016 Town Meeting 
The Planning Board members briefly reviewed their motions for their Warrant Articles in 
preparation for Town Meeting.  
 
With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:25 PM on a MOTION by Mr. 
Markiewicz, SECONDED by Ms. Fillmore, with all members voting in favor. 
 
On Behalf of the Boxborough Planning Board 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Eduardo Pontoriero, Clerk 
 


